
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
  

                                                  
                                                  
 

   

   

  

       

    

       

  

     
     

   
  

 

   
     

  
 

   
    

    
  

 

   

    
     

 
 
 

Phone: 207-439-0452 ext 301 
Email:kpa@kitteryme.org 
http://www.kitteryme.gov/ 

KITTERY PORT AUTHORITY 
TOWN HALL 

200 ROGERS RD. 
KITTERY, ME 03904 

Meeting Agenda 
April 7, 2022 

6:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order / Attendance 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Agenda Amendments and Adoption 

4. Acceptance of Previous Minutes: March 7, 2022 & March 15, 2022 

5. Harbormaster Report and Budget Report 

6. All Items involving Town Officials or Invited Guests 

7. Public Hearing 

a. The Kittery Port Authority moves to approve an “after the fact” application from 
Daniel & Bonnie Hannigan, 11 Pepperrell Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 18, Lot 
11-3) to construct a pier connecting to an existing deck, as shown on Ambit 
Engineering drawing # C1, “Existing Conditions Plan”, dated 9/16/21. Agent Steve 
Riker Ambit Engineering. 

b. The Kittery Port Authority moves to approve an application from Daniel & Bonnie 
Hannigan 11 Pepperrell Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 18, Lot 11-3) for the 
modification of an existing structure consisting of the addition of a 3’x45’ gangway and 
a 10’x20’ float. Agent Steve Riker Ambit Engineering. 

c. The Kittery Port Authority moves to approve an application from Touchdown Capital 
LLC, 23 Bond Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 25, Lot 9) to construct a 4’ x 8’ 
access ramp, a 4’ x 75’ permanent timber pier with access stairs down to adjacent 
beach, a 3’ x 40’ seasonal gangway and a 10’ x 30’ main float. Agent Tidewater 
Engineering & Surveying Inc. 

8. Piers, Wharves & Floats 

a. The Kittery Port Authority moves to accept an application from Matthew Williams, 18 
Hiltons Run, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 33, Lot 17) to replace an existing 8’ x 12’ 

http://www.kitteryme.gov/


   
   

          

       

         

     
 
       

              

     
 

         

       

        

float with a 10’ x 20’ float and replace an existing 3’ x 16’ wood gangway with an 
aluminum gangway that will not exceed 30’. 

9. Public Segment (Three Mins.) 

10. Unfinished Business 

11. New Business 

a. Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Ad Hoc Committee Representative 

12. Committee and Other Reports 

a. Communications from the Chairperson 

* In-kind approval for Bruce Crawford 6 Badgers Island West for 
Repair/Replacement of 3 pilings. 

13. Board Member Issues or Comments 

14. Executive Session 

15. Adjournment 



1 | P a g e  
 

PORT AUTHORITY MEETING                                        UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

 

REMOTE                                                                          MARCH 3, 2022     

 

1. Call to Order / Attendance 1 

Chair Philbrook called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 2 

Members present: Chair Philbrook, Vice Chair Patten, John McCollett, Alan Johnston, 3 
Steve Lawrence and Bryan Bush. Members absent: Niles Pinkham 4 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 5 

3. Agenda Amendments and Adoption 6 

4. Acceptance of Previous Minutes: February 3, 2022 7 

Spelling correction change Patton to Patten. 8 

Chair Philbrook moved to approve the February 3, 2022 minutes as amended, 9 
seconded by Mr. Lawrence. 10 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 11 

5. Harbormaster Report and Budget Report 12 

The Harbormaster completed and submitted the Submerged Lands Lease updates for 13 
the Traip Ramp, he also updated all the other Kittery and Kittery Point Submerged 14 
leases. 15 

The Harbormaster, connecting the face float was brought up to Custom Floats in South 16 
Portland on 3/2/22 so they can match the new one with the face docks, to get the proper 17 
angle and to ensure a strong connecting point.  18 

The Harbormaster stated the 500lb pyramid anchors were in and will be transported to 19 
Traip by DPW at a low tide, so they can be floated over when the floats are delivered 20 
and installed. He also got the corrected Conservation Committee sign back, and he 21 
would install the signs in spring once the floats are back in.  22 

The Harbormaster built all three kayak racks with help of Sgt. Eaton and Niles Pinkham, 23 
he is also working with Niles on a method to anchor them in place. Thanks guys! The 24 
Harbormaster mentioned he would advertise on the town websites and social media 25 
and will assign the kayak rack rentals for the 2022 season, according to KPA Rules and 26 
Regulations.  27 



2 | P a g e  
 

The Harbormaster stated there has been an alternative funding source for the purchase 28 
of a new Harbormaster boat that does not use funds from property taxes. The funding 29 
has been secured and an invitation for bids will be posted next week.  30 

The Harbormaster stated he would be on vacation starting 3/22/2022 and returning to 31 
work on 3/28/2022.  32 

Renewal Update: Moorings renewed – 140, Waitlists – 141, Launch Permits – 47, Boat 33 
Excise Tax – 32, Moorings in Temp Program to date – 7, Moorings given up to date – 34 
10, Kayak Rack Permits issued – 0 35 

 36 

OBJECT ACCT DESCRIPTION  CURRENT YEAR 
BUDGET 

 CURRENT YEAR 
REVENUE 

 CURRENT YEAR 
DIFFERENCE 

PERCENT

43147 DINGHY FEES (10,000.00)$     (3,270.00)$            (6,730.00)$         32.7
43148 TRANSIENT SLIP RENTAL (7,000.00)$        (16,266.00)$         9,266.00$           232.37
43149 KPA APPLICATION FEES (500.00)$            (1,125.00)$            625.00$               225
43150 MOORING FEES (100,000.00)$   (26,696.28)$         (73,303.72)$       26.7
43151 LAUNCH FEE (14,000.00)$     (9,150.95)$            (4,849.05)$         65.36
43152 TRANSIENT MOORING (4,000.00)$        (13,198.00)$         9,198.00$           329.95
43153 WAIT LIST FEE (800.00)$            (1,564.00)$            764.00$               195.5
43156 PIER USAGE FEE (2,400.00)$        (1,998.00)$            (402.00)$             83.25
43157 MOORING LATE FEE -$                    -$                        -$                      0
43159 KAYAK RACK RENTAL -$                    (138.00)$                138.00$               0
TOTAL (138,700.00)$   (73,406.23)$         (65,293.77)$       52.92%

FY 2022 YTD REVENUE



3 | P a g e  
 

 37 
6. All Items involving Town Officials or Invited Guests - None 38 

7. Public Hearing - None 39 

8. Piers, Wharves & Floats 40 

a. The Kittery Port Authority moves to accept an “after the fact” application from Daniel 41 
& Bonnie Hannigan, 11 Pepperrell Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 18, Lot 11-3) to 42 
construct a pier connecting to an existing deck, as shown on Ambit Engineering drawing 43 
# C1, “Existing Conditions Plan”, dated 9/16/21. Agent: Steven Riker, Ambit 44 
Engineering, Inc. 45 

Steven Riker, from Ambit Engineering, Inc., presented the plans and history to the 46 
board, as well as answered any questions the KPA members may have had. 47 

Chair Philbrook moved to accept the “after the fact” application from Daniel & Bonnie 48 
Hannigan, 11 Pepperrell Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905, and scheduled a site walk on 49 
for 3/16/2022 at 5pm, as well as hold a Public Hearing at the KPA April meeting, 50 
seconded by Vice Chair Patten.   51 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 52 

b. The Kittery Port Authority moves to accept an application from Daniel & Bonnie 53 
Hannigan, 11 Pepperrell Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 18, Lot 11-3) for the 54 

OBJECT ACCT DESCRIPTION
 CURRENT 

YEAR BUDGET 

 CURRENT 
YEAR 

EXPENSES 

 CURRENT YEAR 
REMAINING 

PERCENT 
USED

64010 HARBOR MASTER FULL TIME SALARI 60,536.00$      40,836.14$    19,699.86$         67.46
64020 PART TIME SALARIES 19,042.00$      11,741.44$    7,300.56$            61.66
65010 POSTAGE 250.00$            49.44$             200.56$               19.78
65020 TELEPHONE & INTERNET 1,950.00$        1,280.61$      669.39$               65.67
65200 ELECTRICITY 1,800.00$        1,019.25$      780.75$               56.63
65220 WATER 500.00$            155.20$          344.80$               31.04
65240 DUMPSTERS/TRASH REMOVAL 1,000.00$        684.00$          316.00$               68.4
65305 BOAT EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 3,500.00$        3,291.34$      208.66$               94.04
65310 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,500.00$        2,324.00$      (824.00)$              154.93
65311 GAS, GREASE, & OIL 1,500.00$        710.87$          789.13$               47.39
65462 RIGGING 11,000.00$      7,579.71$      3,420.29$            68.91
65463 SANITATION 2,500.00$        1,074.00$      1,426.00$            42.96
65470 PROFESSIONAL  DEVELOPMENT 1,500.00$        700.00$          800.00$               46.67
65480 OTHER PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED 3,000.00$        645.54$          2,354.46$            21.52
65500 MAIN BLDG/GROUNDS WHARVES/HARB 5,000.00$        3,106.73$      1,893.27$            62.13
65521 UNIFORMS 1,000.00$        512.97$          487.03$               51.3
66010 OFFICE SUPPLIES 300.00$            -$                 300.00$               0
66040 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES & SERVICES 500.00$            108.88$          391.12$               21.78
TOTAL 116,378.00$   75,820.12$    40,557.88$         65.15%

FY 2022 YTD EXPENSES



4 | P a g e  
 

modification of an existing structure consisting of the addition of a 3’ x 45’ gangway 2 55 
pilings and a 10’ x 20’ float. Agent: Steven Riker, Ambit Engineering, Inc. 56 

Steven Riker, from Ambit Engineering, Inc., presented the plans to the KPA members, 57 
as well as answered any questions the board may have had. 58 

Chair Philbrook moved to accept the application from Daniel & Bonnie Hannigan, 11 59 
Pepperrell Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 18, Lot 11-3) for the modification of an 60 
existing structure consisting of the addition of a 3’ x 45’ gangway 2 pilings and a 10’ x 61 
20’ float, and scheduled a site walk on for 3/16/2022 at 5pm, as well as hold a public 62 
hearing at the KPA April meeting, seconded by Mr. Lawrence. 63 

Motion Carried 6-0-0  64 

c. The Kittery Port Authority moves to accept an application from Touchdown Capital 65 
LLC, 23 Bond Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 25, Lot 9) to construct a 4’ x 8’ 66 
access ramp, a 4’ x 75’permanent timber pier with access stairs down to adjacent 67 
beach, a 3’ x 40’ seasonal gangway and a 10’ x 30’ main float. Agent: Tidewater 68 
Engineering & Surveying Inc. 69 

Ryan McCarthy, from Tidewater Engineering & Surveying Inc. presented the plans to 70 
the KPA members as well as answered any questions the board may have had. 71 

Chair Philbrook moved to accept the application from Touchdown Capital LLC, 23 Bond 72 
Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 25, Lot 9) to construct a 4’ x 8’ access ramp, a 4’ x 73 
75’ permanent timber pier with access stairs down to adjacent beach, a 3’ x 40’ 74 
seasonal gangway and a 10’ x 30’ main float, also scheduled a site walk 3/162022 at 75 
5:30 p.m. and a Public Hearing at the April KPA meeting, seconded by Mr. Johnston. 76 

Motion Carried 6-0-0  77 

d. The Kittery Port Authority moves to accept an application from The Inhabitants of 78 
Kittery (Town of Kittery), 12 Williams Ave, Kittery, ME 03904 (Map 9, Lot 17) for the 79 
modification of an existing float structure by adding a 6’ x 24’ angled float, two (2) 500lb 80 
anchors, and the addition of up to 18 additional 10’ x 17” x 6’ ramp planks to an existing 81 
boat ramp.  82 

The Harbormaster gave an overview of The Inhabitants of Kittery (Town of Kittery), 12 83 
Williams Ave, Kittery, ME 03904 (Map 9, Lot 17) for the modification of an existing float 84 
structure by adding a 6’ x 24’ angled float, two (2) 500lb anchors, and the addition of up 85 
to 18 additional 10’ x 17” x 6’ ramp planks to an existing boat ramp. 86 

Chair Philbrook moved to accept the application from The Inhabitants of Kittery (Town 87 
of Kittery), 12 Williams Ave, Kittery, ME 03904 (Map 9, Lot 17) for the modification of an 88 
existing float structure by adding a 6’ x 24’ angled float, two (2) 500lb anchors, and the 89 
addition of up to 18 additional 10’ x 17” x 6’ ramp planks to an existing boat ramp, 90 
seconded by Mr. Johnston. 91 



5 | P a g e  
 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 92 

Chair Philbrook moved to hold a Special meeting for a public hearing on 3/15/2022 at 93 
5:00 pm on an application from the Inhabitants of Kittery (Town of Kittery), 12 Williams 94 
Ave, Kittery, ME 03904 (Map 9, Lot 17) for the modification of an existing float structure 95 
by adding a 6’ x 24’ angled float, two (2) 500lb anchors, and the addition of up to 18 96 
additional 10’ x 17” x 6’ ramp planks to an existing boat ramp, seconded by Mr. Bush. 97 

Motion Carried 6-0-0  98 

9. Public Segment (Three Mins.) 99 

Jennifer Thayer, 47 Martin Road, Kittery thanked the KPA of all their hard work. 100 

10. Unfinished Business - None 101 

11. New Business - None 102 

12. Committee and Other Reports - None 103 

a. Communications from the Chairperson 104 

Chair Philbrook stated she was working on a riparian mooring at 29 Water Street. 105 

13. Board Member Issues or Comments 106 

Mr. McCollett stated he was being interviewed for the Climate Adaptation Committee. 107 

Mr. Lawrence thanked the board for not having the Special meeting on St. Patrick’s 108 
Day, he also asked the board for a moment of silence for a family that is close to the 109 
board. 110 

Vice Chair Patten said it was not very often that someone thanks us for the work the 111 
board does. He also stated how much he appreciated the comment. 112 

Chair Philbrook spoke about a new sign down at the town dock. 113 

Chair Philbrook had a question about the Isles of Shoals after the bad winter storm and 114 
asked if anyone had seen videos of Everett Paul’s dock being completely destroyed. 115 

Mr. Johnston asked about funding for the signs.     116 

14. Executive Session – None  117 

15. Adjournment 118 

Chair Philbrook moved to adjourn at 7:43 p.m., seconded by Mr. Johnston. 119 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 120 

 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 



6 | P a g e  
 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 
Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the 
minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a 
summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please 
refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 



PORT AUTHORITY MEETING                                        UNAPPROVED MINUTES              

SPECIAL MEETING 5:00PM                                           MARCH 15, 2022                 

HYBRID                                            

                                                                                      

1. Call to Order 1 

Chair Philbrook called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 2 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 3 

3. Roll Call 4 

Members present: Chair Philbrook, Vice Chair Patten, Bryan Bush, Alan Johnston, and Niles 5 
Pinkham. Members absent: Steve Lawrence, and John McCollett. 6 

4. Public Hearing 7 

a. The Kittery Port Authority moves to hold a public hearing on an application from The 8 
Inhabitants of Kittery (Town of Kittery), 12 Williams Ave, Kittery ME 03904 (Map 9, Lot 17) for 9 
the modification of an existing float structure by adding a 6’ x 24’, two (2) 500lb anchors,  10 
and the addition of up to 18 additional 10’ x 17” x 6’ ramp planks to an existing boat ramp. 11 
 
Chair Philbrook moved to approve the application from The Inhabitants of Kittery (Town of 12 
Kittery), 12 Williams Ave, Kittery ME 03904 (Map 9, Lot 17) for the modification of an existing 13 
float structure by adding a 6’ x 24’, two (2) 500lb anchors, and the addition of up to 18 additional 14 
10’ x 17” x 6’ ramp planks to an existing boat ramp, seconded by Mr. Johnston. 15 
 
Motion Carried 4-0-1 16 
 
Chair Philbrook, Vice Chair Patten, Alan Johnston, Niles Pinkham voted to approve. 17 
Bryan Bush abstained. 18 
 
 5. Adjournment 19 

Chair Philbrook moved to adjourn at 5:05 p.m., seconded by Mr. Bush. 20 

Motion Carried 5-0-0 21 

 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. Whilst 
every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the minutes are not 
intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a summary of the discussion 
and actions that took place. For complete details, please refer to the video of the meeting on the 
Town of Kittery website. 















































































































































































































 
   

  
       

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

                                       

   

  

     

 

 

 

  

   

 

  

  

 

  

 

 
   

    

   

  

     

  

 

 

 

 

    

     

 

  

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

STATE OF MAINE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

17 STATE HOUSE STATION AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0017 

DEPARTMENT ORDER 

IN THE MATTER OF 

TOUCHDOWN CAPITAL, LLC ) NATURAL RESOURCES PROTECTION ACT 

Kittery, York County ) COASTAL WETLAND ALTERATION 

PIER CONSTRUCTION ) WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION 

L-29439-4P-A-N (approval) ) FINDINGS OF FACT AND ORDER 

L-29439-TW-B-N (approval)  ) SIGNIFICANT WILDLIFE HABITAT 

*CORRECTED ORDER 

Pursuant to the provisions of 38 M.R.S. §§ 480-A–480-JJ, Section 401 of the Federal Water 

Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1341), and Chapters 310, 315, and 335 of Department rules, 

the Department of Environmental Protection has considered the application of TOUCHDOWN 

CAPITAL, LLC with the supportive data, and other related materials on file and FINDS THE 

FOLLOWING FACTS: 

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

A. Summary:  The applicant proposes to construct a residential pier system 

consisting of a 4-foot wide by 75-foot-long pile-supported pier, and a 3-foot wide by *40-

foot-long seasonal ramp with a 10-foot wide by *30-foot-long seasonal float.  The 

proposed pier will be supported by 12 timber piles with 71 square feet of direct impact to 

the coastal wetland.  Approximately 666 square feet of indirect impacts due to shading 

are proposed.  The ramp and float will be stored on the fixed pier when not in use.  The 

project is as shown on a plan entitled “Proposed Pier & Float Plan”, dated November 9, 

2021, and prepared by Ryan McCarthy.  The project is located in a Tidal Waterfowl and 

Wading Bird Habitat, a Significant Wildlife Habitat as defined by the Natural Resources 

Protection Act (NRPA).  The project site is located on 23 Bond Road in the Town of 

Kittery. 

B. Current Use of the Site: The project site contains a home.  The parcel is identified 

as Lot 9 on Map 25 of the Town of Kittery’s tax maps. 

2. EXISTING SCENIC, AESTHETIC, RECREATIONAL OR NAVIGATIONAL USES: 

The Natural Resources Protection Act (NRPA), in 38 M.R.S. §480-D(1), requires the 

applicant to demonstrate that the proposed project will not unreasonably interfere with 

existing scenic, aesthetic, recreational and navigational uses. 

In accordance with Chapter 315, Assessing and Mitigating Impacts to Scenic and 

Aesthetic Uses (06-096 C.M.R. ch. 315, effective June 29, 2003), the applicant submitted 

a copy of the Department's Visual Evaluation Field Survey Checklist as Appendix A to 

the application along with a description of the property and the proposed project.  The 



 

     
 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

   

 

 

   

 

 

L-29439-4P-A-N/L-29439-TW-B-N 2 of 9 

applicant also submitted several photographs of the proposed project site and 

surroundings. 

The proposed project is located on Spruce Creek, which is a scenic resource visited by 

the general public, in part, for the use, observation, enjoyment and appreciation of its 

natural and cultural visual qualities.  Other similar piers are visible from the project site. 

Based on the information submitted in the application, the Department determined that 

the location and scale of the proposed activity is compatible with the existing visual 

quality and landscape characteristics found within the viewshed of the scenic resource in 

the project area.  

The Department of Marine Resources (DMR) stated that the proposed project should not 

cause any significant adverse impact to navigation or recreation based on the nature of 

the project and its location. 

The Department finds that the proposed activity will not unreasonably interfere with 

existing scenic, aesthetic, recreational or navigational uses. 

3. SOIL EROSION: 

The NRPA, in 38 M.R.S. §480-D(2), requires the applicant to demonstrate that the 

proposed project will not cause unreasonable erosion of soil or sediment nor 

unreasonably inhibit the natural transfer of soil from the terrestrial to the marine or 

freshwater environment. 

For construction, the site will be accessed by barge. Minimal soil disturbance is expected 

to result from the construction as the piles are pinned to ledge with no open excavation 

proposed. 

The Department finds that the activity will not cause unreasonable erosion of soil or 

sediment nor unreasonably inhibit the natural transfer of soil from the terrestrial to the 

marine or freshwater environment. 

4. HABITAT CONSIDERATIONS: 

The NRPA, in 38 M.R.S. §480-D(3), requires the applicant to demonstrate that the 

proposed project will not unreasonably harm significant wildlife habitat, freshwater 

wetland plant habitat, threatened or endangered plant habitat, aquatic or adjacent upland 

habitat, travel corridor, freshwater, estuarine or marine fisheries or other aquatic life. 

The project site consists of exposed ledge outcroppings, gravel (mixed coarse and fine 

aggregates), boulders, and substrates with high clay content. Rockweed boulders become 

prevalent in the lower intertidal as well as an increase of clay content in the substrate. 

Neighboring properties also contain residential pier systems. 



 

     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

       

 

    

 

    

  

 

 

 

   

L-29439-4P-A-N/L-29439-TW-B-N 3 of 9 

The Department of Marine Resources (DMR) stated that the project as proposed would 

have little to no long-term impact to marine resources, habitat, or traditional fishing.  

The Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife (MDIFW) reviewed the 

proposed project and stated that the project site contains a Tidal Waterfowl and Wading 

Bird Habitat. The MDIFW recommended that float skids be placed under the float to 

minimize impacts to intertidal flats and vegetation at low cycles. The applicant has stated 

that the pier has been designed so the float will not make contact with the intertidal 

surface during low cycles, deeming float skids unnecessary. The MDIFW also 

recommended that light transparent decking be used on the permanent pier where it 

intersects with aquatic vegetation. The applicant has designed the location of the pier to 

avoid aquatic vegetation to the extent practicable by extending the pier over an area of 

exposed ledge outcrop void of any vegetation, deeming transparent decking unnecessary. 

The Department finds that the activity will not unreasonably harm any significant wildlife 

habitat, freshwater wetland plant habitat, threatened or endangered plant habitat, aquatic 

or adjacent upland habitat, travel corridor, freshwater, estuarine or marine fisheries or 

other aquatic life. 

5. WATER QUALITY CONSIDERATIONS: 

As discussed in Finding 3, the applicant proposes to use erosion and sediment control 

during construction to minimize impacts to water quality from siltation.  

The applicant proposes to use lumber treated with chromated copper arsenate (CCA) to 

construct the pier.  To protect water quality, all CCA-treated lumber must be cured on dry 

land in a manner that exposes all surfaces to the air for 21 days prior to the start of 

construction.  

Provided that CCA-treated lumber is cured as described above, the Department finds that 

the proposed project will not violate any state water quality law, including those 

governing the classification of the State’s waters. 

6. WETLANDS AND WATERBODIES PROTECTION RULES: 

The applicant proposes to directly alter 71 square feet of coastal wetland to construct the 

proposed residential pier system.  Approximately 666 square feet of indirect impact due 

to shading is also proposed. Coastal wetlands are wetlands of special significance. 

The Wetlands and Waterbodies Protection Rules, 06-096 C.M.R. ch. 310 (last amended 

January 26, 2009), interpret and elaborate on the Natural Resources Protection Act 

(NRPA) criteria for obtaining a permit.  The rules guide the Department in its 

determination of whether a project’s impacts would be unreasonable.  A proposed project 

would generally be found to be unreasonable if it would cause a loss in wetland area, 

functions and values and there is a practicable alternative to the project that would be less 

damaging to the environment. Each application for a NRPA permit that involves a 



 

     
 

 

 

 

  

 

   

   

 

  

    

 

  

  

 

   

  

 

 

  

    

      

 

 

    

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

L-29439-4P-A-N/L-29439-TW-B-N 4 of 9 

coastal wetland alteration must provide an analysis of alternatives in order to demonstrate 

that a practicable alternative does not exist. 

A. Avoidance.  The applicant must submit an analysis of whether there is a 

practicable alternative to the project that would be less damaging to the environment and 

this analysis is considered by the Department in its assessment of the reasonableness of 

any impacts.  Additionally, for activities proposed in, on, or over wetlands of special 

significance the activity must be among the types listed in Chapter 310, § 5(A) or a 

practicable alternative less damaging to the environment is considered to exist and the 

impact is unreasonable. The construction of a pier is allowed by Chapter 310, § 5(A)1(c), 

water dependent uses.  The applicant submitted an alternatives analysis for the proposed 

project completed by Ryan McCarthy.  The purpose of the project is to provide the 

applicant with all-tide access to the water for recreational boating.  The applicant 

considered a seasonal structure and stated that it was not practical due to the bi-annual 

impacts on the intertidal. The applicant has considered reducing the length of the 

proposed pier, but this was deemed impracticable as during times of low-tide the float 

and watercrafts would rest on the surface of the intertidal. The applicant considered the 

use of a public boat launch facility located in the Town of Kittery, approximately 1.5 

miles from the project site, however, this alternative was discounted due to the length of 

the wait list. In order to meet the project purpose, some impacts to the coastal wetland are 

unavoidable. 

B. Minimal Alteration.  In support of an application and to address the analysis of 

the reasonableness of any impacts of a proposed project, the applicant must demonstrate 

that the impacts will be kept to the minimum amount necessary for meeting the overall 

purpose of the project.  The applicant has designed the pier at the shortest length required 

to provide all-tide access.  The pier is pile-supported (12 timber piles) to minimize 

wetland intrusion, and some piles will be pinned to ledge, with minimal direct impacts to 

the coastal wetland proposed.  The float and ramp will be seasonal and will be stored in 

the upland when not in use. 

C. Compensation.  In accordance with Chapter 310, § 5(C)(6)(b), compensation may 

be required to achieve the goal of no net loss of coastal wetland functions and values. 

This project will not result in over 500 square feet of fill in the resource, which is the 

threshold over which compensation is generally required.  Further, the proposed project 

will not have an adverse impact on marine resources or wildlife habitat as determined by 

DMR and MDIFW.  For these reasons, the Department determined that compensation is 

not required. 

The Department finds that the applicant has avoided and minimized adjacent activity to 

the greatest extent practicable, and that the proposed project represents the least 

environmentally damaging alternative that meets the overall purpose of the project. 



 

     
 

  

 

  

    

     

    

 

  

 

  

 

 

 
 

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

   

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

  

    

 

 

  

L-29439-4P-A-N/L-29439-TW-B-N 5 of 9 

7. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS: 

The Department finds, based on the design, proposed construction methods, and location, 

the proposed project will not inhibit the natural transfer of soil from the terrestrial to the 

marine environment, will not interfere with the natural flow of any surface or subsurface 

waters, and will not cause or increase flooding. The proposed project is not located in a 

coastal sand dune system, is not a crossing of an outstanding river segment, and does not 

involve dredge spoils disposal or the transport of dredge spoils by water. 

BASED on the above findings of fact, and subject to the conditions listed below, the Department 

makes the following conclusions pursuant to 38 M.R.S. §§ 480-A–480-JJ and Section 401 of the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act: 

A. The proposed activity will not unreasonably interfere with existing scenic, aesthetic, 

recreational, or navigational uses. 

B. The proposed activity will not cause unreasonable erosion of soil or sediment. 

C. The proposed activity will not unreasonably inhibit the natural transfer of soil from the 

terrestrial to the marine or freshwater environment. 

D. The proposed activity will not unreasonably harm any significant wildlife habitat, 

freshwater wetland plant habitat, threatened or endangered plant habitat, aquatic or 

adjacent upland habitat, travel corridor, freshwater, estuarine, or marine fisheries or other 

aquatic life. 

E. The proposed activity will not unreasonably interfere with the natural flow of any surface 

or subsurface waters. 

F. The proposed activity will not violate any state water quality law including those 

governing the classifications of the State's waters provided the applicant meets the 

requirement of Finding 5. 

G. The proposed activity will not unreasonably cause or increase the flooding of the 

alteration area or adjacent properties. 

H. The proposed activity is not on or adjacent to a sand dune. 

I. The proposed activity is not on an outstanding river segment as noted in 38 M.R.S. § 

480-P. 

THEREFORE, the Department APPROVES the above noted application of TOUCHDOWN 

CAPITAL, LLC to construct a residential pier system as described in Finding 1, SUBJECT TO 

THE ATTACHED CONDITIONS, and all applicable standards and regulations: 

1. Standard Conditions of Approval, a copy attached. 



 

     
 

 
  

  

  

    

   

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

         

  

 

 

 

 
  

L-29439-4P-A-N/L-29439-TW-B-N 6 of 9 

2. The applicant shall take all necessary measures to ensure that their activities or those of 

their agents do not result in measurable erosion of soil on the site during the construction 

of the project covered by this approval. 

3. Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision, or part thereof, of this 

License shall not affect the remainder of the provision or any other provisions.  This 

License shall be construed and enforced in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable 

provision or part thereof had been omitted. 

4. All CCA-treated lumber shall be cured on dry land in a manner that exposes all surfaces 

to the air for 21 days prior to the start of construction. 

THIS APPROVAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE OR SUBSTITUTE FOR ANY OTHER 

REQUIRED STATE, FEDERAL OR LOCAL APPROVALS NOR DOES IT VERIFY 

COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES. 

DONE AND DATED IN AUGUSTA, MAINE, THIS 25TH DAY OF MARCH, 2022. 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

CORRECTING THE ORDER DATED March 24, 2022. The effective date and expiration date 

remain the same as in the original. 

BY: 

For: Melanie Loyzim, Commissioner 

PLEASE NOTE THE ATTACHED SHEET FOR GUIDANCE ON APPEAL PROCEDURES. 

KF/L-29439ANBN/ATS#88412 & ATS#88583 

FILED 
March 29th, 2022 

State of Maine 

Board of Environmental Protection 



 

     
 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 
        

          
 

 
          

     
     

   
 

    
  

  
 

            
        

  
 

         
       
        

      
 

 

           
    

           
        

   
     

   
 

        
    

 
 

            
 

 

                 
  

 
 
 
 

 
  

L-29439-4P-A-N/L-29439-TW-B-N 7 of 9 

Natural Resources Protection Act (NRPA) 

Standard Conditions 

THE FOLLOWING STANDARD CONDITIONS SHALL APPLY TO ALL PERMITS GRANTED 
UNDER THE NATURAL RESOURCES PROTECTION ACT, 38 M.R.S. § 480-A ET SEQ., UNLESS 
OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY STATED IN THE PERMIT. 

A. Approval of Variations From Plans. The granting of this permit is dependent upon and limited to 
the proposals and plans contained in the application and supporting documents submitted and 
affirmed to by the applicant. Any variation from these plans, proposals, and supporting documents 
is subject to review and approval prior to implementation. 

B. Compliance With All Applicable Laws. The applicant shall secure and comply with all applicable 
federal, state, and local licenses, permits, authorizations, conditions, agreements, and orders prior 
to or during construction and operation, as appropriate. 

C. Erosion Control. The applicant shall take all necessary measures to ensure that his activities or 
those of his agents do not result in measurable erosion of soils on the site during the construction 
and operation of the project covered by this Approval. 

D. Compliance With Conditions. Should the project be found, at any time, not to be in compliance 
with any of the Conditions of this Approval, or should the applicant construct or operate this 
development in any way other the specified in the Application or Supporting Documents, as 
modified by the Conditions of this Approval, then the terms of this Approval shall be considered to 
have been violated. 

E. Time frame for approvals. If construction or operation of the activity is not begun within four years, 
this permit shall lapse and the applicant shall reapply to the Board for a new permit.  The applicant 
may not begin construction or operation of the activity until a new permit is granted. Reapplications 
for permits may include information submitted in the initial application by reference. This approval, 
if construction is begun within the four-year time frame, is valid for seven years. If construction is 
not completed within the seven-year time frame, the applicant must reapply for, and receive, 
approval prior to continuing construction. 

F. No Construction Equipment Below High Water. No construction equipment used in the 
undertaking of an approved activity is allowed below the mean high water line unless otherwise 
specified by this permit. 

G. Permit Included In Contract Bids. A copy of this permit must be included in or attached to all 
contract bid specifications for the approved activity. 

H. Permit Shown To Contractor. Work done by a contractor pursuant to this permit shall not begin 
before the contractor has been shown by the applicant a copy of this permit. 

Revised September 2016 



 

     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

              

                

             

             

 

 

            

               

                 

                 

                

 

 

                 

           

         

 

            

           

              

   

 

 
  

 

                  

           

             

 

               

                 

        

 

L-29439-4P-A-N/L-29439-TW-B-N 8 of 9 

STATE OF MAINE 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

17 STATE HOUSE STATION, AUGUSTA, MAINE   04333 

Erosion Control for Homeowners 

Before Construction 

1. If you have hired a contractor, make sure you discuss your permit with them. Talk about what measures they plan 

to take to control erosion. Everybody involved should understand what the resource is, and where it is located. 

Most people can identify the edge of a lake or river. However, the edges of wetlands are often not so obvious. 

Your contractor may be the person actually pushing dirt around, but you are both responsible for complying with 

the permit. 

2. Call around to find where erosion control materials are available. Chances are your contractor has these materials 

already on hand. You probably will need silt fence, hay bales, wooden stakes, grass seed (or conservation mix), 

and perhaps filter fabric. Places to check for these items include farm & feed supply stores, garden & lawn 

suppliers, and landscaping companies. It is not always easy to find hay or straw during late winter and early spring. 

It also may be more expensive during those times of year. Plan ahead -- buy a supply early and keep it under a 

tarp. 

3. Before any soil is disturbed, make sure an erosion control barrier has been installed. The barrier can be either a 

silt fence, a row of staked hay bales, or both. Use the drawings below as a guide for correct installation and 

placement. The barrier should be placed as close as possible to the soil-disturbance activity. 

4. If a contractor is installing the erosion control barrier, double check it as a precaution. Erosion control barriers 

should be installed "on the contour", meaning at the same level or elevation across the land slope, whenever 

possible. This keeps stormwater from flowing to the lowest point along the barrier where it can build up and 

overflow or destroy the barrier. 

During Construction 

1. Use lots of hay or straw mulch on disturbed soil. The idea behind mulch is to prevent rain from striking the soil 

directly. It is the force of raindrops hitting the bare ground that makes the soil begin to move downslope with the 

runoff water, and cause erosion. More than 90% of erosion is prevented by keeping the soil covered. 

2. Inspect your erosion control barriers frequently. This is especially important after a rainfall. If there is muddy 

water leaving the project site, then your erosion controls are not working as intended. You or your contractor then 

need to figure out what can be done to prevent more soil from getting past the barrier. 



 

     
 

                  

   

  

 

                  

               

                 

           

 

                

                

                  

            

 

                  

   

 

   

 

    

 

              

                 

                  

             

            

 

   

 

                 

              

 

 

   

 

              

             

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

L-29439-4P-A-N/L-29439-TW-B-N 9 of 9 

3. Keep your erosion control barrier up and maintained until you get a good and healthy growth of grass and the area 

is permanently stabilized. 

After Construction 

1. After your project is finished, seed the area. Note that all ground covers are not equal. For example, a mix of 

creeping red fescue and Kentucky bluegrass is a good choice for lawns and other high-maintenance areas. But this 

same seed mix is a poor selection for stabilizing a road shoulder or a cut bank that you don't intend to mow. Your 

contractor may have experience with different seed mixes, or you might contact a seed supplier for advice. 

2. Do not spread grass seed after September 15. There is the likelihood that germinating seedlings could be killed by 

a frost before they have a chance to become established. Instead, mulch the area with a thick layer of hay or straw. 

In the spring, rake off the mulch and then seed the area. Don't forget to mulch again to hold in moisture and prevent 

the seed from washing away or being eaten by birds or other animals. 

3. Keep your erosion control barrier up and maintained until you get a good and healthy growth of grass and the area 

is permanently stabilized. 

Why Control Erosion? 

To Protect Water Quality 

When soil erodes into protected resources such as streams, rivers, wetlands, and lakes, it has many bad effects. 

Eroding soil particles carry phosphorus to the water. An excess of phosphorus can lead to explosions of algae 

growth in lakes and ponds called blooms. The water will look green and can have green slime in it. If you are near 

a lake or pond, this is not pleasant for swimming, and when the soil settles out on the bottom, it smothers fish eggs 

and small animals eaten by fish. There many other effects as well, which are all bad. 

To Protect the Soil 

It has taken thousands of years for our soil to develop. It usefulness is evident all around us, from sustaining forests 

and growing our garden vegetables, to even treating our septic wastewater! We cannot afford to waste this valuable 

resource. 

To Save Money ($$) 

Replacing topsoil or gravel washed off your property can be expensive. You end up paying twice because State and 

local governments wind up spending your tax dollars to dig out ditches and storm drains that have become choked 

with sediment from soil erosion. 

DEPLW0386 A2012 



 

 

 

 
 

 

    
 

 
 

  

  

 

  

   

 

 

 

      

    

 

    

 

 

  

 

  

 

   

 

 

  

 

  

 

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

  

DEP INFORMATION SHEET 
Appealing a Department Licensing Decision 

Dated: August 2021 Contact: (207) 314-1458 

SUMMARY 

This document provides information regarding a person’s rights and obligations in filing an administrative or 
judicial appeal of a licensing decision made by the Department of Environmental Protection’s (DEP) 

Commissioner. 

Except as provided below, there are two methods available to an aggrieved person seeking to appeal a licensing 

decision made by the DEP Commissioner: (1) an administrative process before the Board of Environmental 

Protection (Board); or (2) a judicial process before Maine’s Superior Court. An aggrieved person seeking review 

of a licensing decision over which the Board had original jurisdiction may seek judicial review in Maine’s 
Superior Court. 

A judicial appeal of final action by the Commissioner or the Board regarding an application for an expedited 

wind energy development (35-A M.R.S. § 3451(4)) or a general permit for an offshore wind energy 

demonstration project (38 M.R.S. § 480-HH(1)) or a general permit for a tidal energy demonstration project 

(38 M.R.S. § 636-A) must be taken to the Supreme Judicial Court sitting as the Law Court. 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS TO THE BOARD 

LEGAL REFERENCES 

A person filing an appeal with the Board should review Organization and Powers, 38 M.R.S. §§ 341-D(4) 

and 346; the Maine Administrative Procedure Act, 5 M.R.S. § 11001; and the DEP’s Rule Concerning the 

Processing of Applications and Other Administrative Matters (Chapter 2), 06-096 C.M.R. ch. 2. 

DEADLINE TO SUBMIT AN APPEAL TO THE BOARD 

Not more than 30 days following the filing of a license decision by the Commissioner with the Board, an 

aggrieved person may appeal to the Board for review of the Commissioner’s decision. The filing of an 

appeal with the Board, in care of the Board Clerk, is complete when the Board receives the submission by 

the close of business on the due date (5:00 p.m. on the 30th calendar day from which the Commissioner’s 

decision was filed with the Board, as determined by the received time stamp on the document or electronic 

mail). Appeals filed after 5:00 p.m. on the 30th calendar day from which the Commissioner's decision was 

filed with the Board will be dismissed as untimely, absent a showing of good cause. 

HOW TO SUBMIT AN APPEAL TO THE BOARD 

An appeal to the Board may be submitted via postal mail or electronic mail and must contain all signatures 

and required appeal contents. An electronic filing must contain the scanned original signature of the 

appellant(s). The appeal documents must be sent to the following address. 

Chair, Board of Environmental Protection 

c/o Board Clerk 

17 State House Station 

Augusta, ME 04333-0017 

ruth.a.burke@maine.gov 

OCF/90-1/r95/r98/r99/r00/r04/r12/r18/r21 

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/35-A/title35-Ach34-Asec0.html
http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/38/title38sec480-HH.html
http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/38/title38sec636-A.html
http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/38/title38sec341-D.html
http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/38/title38sec346.html
http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/5/title5sec11001.html
https://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/rules/06/chaps06.htm
https://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/rules/06/chaps06.htm
mailto:ruth.a.burke@maine.gov


     
  

    

 

  

  

   

 

      

 

  

  

 

  

   

     

    

 

     

  

 

     

    

  

   

   

  

    

  

     

    

    

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

   

   

    

  

   

 

     

    

 

    

  

Appealing a Department Licensing Decision 
August 2021 

Page 2 of 3 

The DEP may also request the submittal of the original signed paper appeal documents when the appeal is 

filed electronically. The risk of material not being received in a timely manner is on the sender, regardless of 

the method used. 

At the time an appeal is filed with the Board, the appellant must send a copy of the appeal to: (1) the 

Commissioner of the DEP (Maine Department of Environmental Protection, 17 State House Station, 

Augusta, Maine 04333-0017); (2) the licensee; and if a hearing was held on the application, (3) any 

intervenors in that hearing proceeding. Please contact the DEP at 207-287-7688 with questions or for 

contact information regarding a specific licensing decision. 

REQUIRED APPEAL CONTENTS 

A complete appeal must contain the following information at the time the appeal is submitted. 

1. Aggrieved status. The appeal must explain how the appellant has standing to bring the appeal. This 

requires an explanation of how the appellant may suffer a particularized injury as a result of the 

Commissioner’s decision. 

2. The findings, conclusions, or conditions objected to or believed to be in error. The appeal must identify 

the specific findings of fact, conclusions of law, license conditions, or other aspects of the written 

license decision or of the license review process that the appellant objects to or believes to be in error. 

3. The basis of the objections or challenge. For the objections identified in Item #2, the appeal must state 

why the appellant believes that the license decision is incorrect and should be modified or reversed. If 

possible, the appeal should cite specific evidence in the record or specific licensing criteria that the 

appellant believes were not properly considered or fully addressed. 

4. The remedy sought. This can range from reversal of the Commissioner's decision on the license to 

changes in specific license conditions. 

5. All the matters to be contested. The Board will limit its consideration to those matters specifically raised 

in the written notice of appeal. 

6. Request for hearing. If the appellant wishes the Board to hold a public hearing on the appeal, a request 

for hearing must be filed as part of the notice of appeal, and it must include an offer of proof regarding 

the testimony and other evidence that would be presented at the hearing. The offer of proof must consist 

of a statement of the substance of the evidence, its relevance to the issues on appeal, and whether any 

witnesses would testify. The Board will hear the arguments in favor of and in opposition to a hearing on 

the appeal and the presentations on the merits of an appeal at a regularly scheduled meeting. If the 

Board decides to hold a public hearing on an appeal, that hearing will then be scheduled for a later date. 

7. New or additional evidence to be offered. If an appellant wants to provide evidence not previously 

provided to DEP staff during the DEP’s review of the application, the request and the proposed 
supplemental evidence must be submitted with the appeal. The Board may allow new or additional 

evidence to be considered in an appeal only under limited circumstances. The proposed supplemental 

evidence must be relevant and material, and (a) the person seeking to add information to the record must 

show due diligence in bringing the evidence to the DEP’s attention at the earliest possible time in the 

licensing process; or (b) the evidence itself must be newly discovered and therefore unable to have been 

presented earlier in the process. Requirements for supplemental evidence are set forth in Chapter 2 § 24. 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS IN APPEALING A DECISION TO THE BOARD 

1. Be familiar with all relevant material in the DEP record. A license application file is public 

information, subject to any applicable statutory exceptions, and is made accessible by the DEP. Upon 

request, the DEP will make application materials available to review and photocopy during normal 

working hours. There may be a charge for copies or copying services. 

OCF/90-1/r/95/r98/r99/r00/r04/r12/r18/r21 

https://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/rules/06/chaps06.htm


     
  

    

 

  

 

     

  

     

 

  

 

 

    

     

 

  

   

  

    

    

   

    

   

    

 

 

  

 

   

  

  

  

   

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

    

    

 

 

  

   

     

 

 

Appealing a Department Licensing Decision 
August 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

2. Be familiar with the regulations and laws under which the application was processed, and the 

procedural rules governing the appeal. DEP staff will provide this information upon request and answer 

general questions regarding the appeal process. 

3. The filing of an appeal does not operate as a stay to any decision. If a license has been granted and it 

has been appealed, the license normally remains in effect pending the processing of the appeal. Unless a 

stay of the decision is requested and granted, a licensee may proceed with a project pending the outcome 

of an appeal, but the licensee runs the risk of the decision being reversed or modified as a result of the 

appeal. 

WHAT TO EXPECT ONCE YOU FILE A TIMELY APPEAL WITH THE BOARD 

The Board will acknowledge receipt of an appeal, and it will provide the name of the DEP project manager 

assigned to the specific appeal. The notice of appeal, any materials admitted by the Board as supplementary 

evidence, any materials admitted in response to the appeal, relevant excerpts from the DEP’s administrative 
record for the application, and the DEP staff’s recommendation, in the form of a proposed Board Order, will 

be provided to Board members. The appellant, the licensee, and parties of record are notified in advance of 

the date set for the Board’s consideration of an appeal or request for a hearing. The appellant and the 

licensee will have an opportunity to address the Board at the Board meeting. The Board will decide whether 

to hold a hearing on appeal when one is requested before deciding the merits of the appeal. The Board’s 

decision on appeal may be to affirm all or part, affirm with conditions, order a hearing to be held as 

expeditiously as possible, reverse all or part of the decision of the Commissioner, or remand the matter to 

the Commissioner for further proceedings. The Board will notify the appellant, the licensee, and parties of 

record of its decision on appeal. 

II. JUDICIAL APPEALS 

Maine law generally allows aggrieved persons to appeal final Commissioner or Board licensing decisions 

to Maine’s Superior Court (see 38 M.R.S. § 346(1); 06-096 C.M.R. ch. 2; 5 M.R.S. § 11001; and M.R. Civ. 

P. 80C). A party’s appeal must be filed with the Superior Court within 30 days of receipt of notice of the 

Board’s or the Commissioner’s decision. For any other person, an appeal must be filed within 40 days of the 

date the decision was rendered. An appeal to court of a license decision regarding an expedited wind energy 

development, a general permit for an offshore wind energy demonstration project, or a general permit for a 

tidal energy demonstration project may only be taken directly to the Maine Supreme Judicial Court. See 38 

M.R.S. § 346(4). 

Maine’s Administrative Procedure Act, DEP statutes governing a particular matter, and the Maine Rules of 
Civil Procedure must be consulted for the substantive and procedural details applicable to judicial appeals. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

If you have questions or need additional information on the appeal process, for administrative appeals contact 

the Board Clerk at 207-287-2811 or the Board Executive Analyst at 207-314-1458 bill.hinkel@maine.gov, or 

for judicial appeals contact the court clerk’s office in which the appeal will be filed. 

Note: This information sheet, in conjunction with a review of the statutory and regulatory provisions 

referred to herein, is provided to help a person to understand their rights and obligations in filing 

an administrative or judicial appeal. The DEP provides this information sheet for general guidance 

only; it is not intended for use as a legal reference. Maine law governs an appellant’s rights. 

OCF/90-1/r/95/r98/r99/r00/r04/r12/r18/r21 

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/38/title38sec346.html
http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/5/title5sec11001.html
mailto:bill.hinkel@maine.gov


 
 
 

 
 

  
  

 
           

       
              
              

 
               
               
               
               
               
               
  
 

                                        
 

 
  

        
   

      
  

   
       

      
        

      
 

     
    

 
          
         

 
 

   
  

 
                    

       
 

        
 

                                                              
 

 
 

             
  

                                             
 

      
 

       
 

            
     

 
 
             

                      
      

       
 
 

   
  

 
 

 
 

    
 
 

                      
                      

             
            

        
                                                                                     

__________ 

MAINE GENERAL PERMITS (GPs)
AUTHORIZATION LETTER AND SCREENING SUMMARY 

Touchdown Capital, LLC. 
CORPS PERMIT # 
CORPS GP# 
STATE ID# 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: 

16266 Dorilee Lane 
Encino, CA 91436 

NAE-2021-03061 
3 
L-29439-4P-A-N / TW-B-N 

The project involves installation and maintenance of a 4’ by 8’ ramp, a 4’ x 75’ pile supported pier, a 3’ by 40’ gangway that connects to 
a 10’ by 30’ float located at 23 Bond Road in Kittery, Maine. The pier will be supported with 12- 12” diameter timber piles. Only 8 of the 
12 piles are located below the mean high tide (MHW). The structure will extend a maximum of about 100’ beyond the MHW. The float 
will be secured with 4 – 16 sq. ft. concrete mooring blocks. This work is shown on the attached two sheets titled “PROPOSED PIER & 
FLOAT PLAN”, dated ”Nov. 9, 2021”. 

See GENERAL CONDITIONS attached. .      

LAT/LONG COORDINATES: W     

I.  CORPS DETERMINATION: 

N       -70.716933° 43.087256° USGS QUAD:________________________ KITTERY, MAINE 

Based on our review of the information you provided, we have determined that your project will have only minimal individual and cumulative impacts on 
waters and wetlands of the United States. Your work is therefore authorized by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers under the Federal Permit, the
Maine General Permits (GPs) which can be found at: https://www.nae.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/State-General-Permits/Maine-General-
Permit/ Accordingly, we do not plan to take any further action on this project. 

You must perform the activity authorized herein in compliance with all the terms and conditions of the GP [including any attached Special Conditions and 
any conditions placed on the State 401 Water Quality Certification including any required mitigation. Please review the GPs, including the GPs 
conditions beginning on page 5, to familiarize yourself with its contents.  You are responsible for complying with all of the GPs requirements; therefore 
you should be certain that whoever does the work fully understands all of the conditions.  You may wish to discuss the conditions of this authorization 
with your contractor to ensure the contractor can accomplish the work in a manner that conforms to all requirements. 

If you change the plans or construction methods for work within our jurisdiction, please contact us immediately to discuss modification of this 
authorization.  This office must approve any changes before you undertake them. 

Condition 45 of the GPs (page 19) provides one year for completion of work that has commenced or is under contract to commence prior to the 
expiration of the GPs on October 14, 2025. You will need to apply for reauthorization for any work within Corps jurisdiction that is not completed by 
October 14, 2026. 

This authorization presumes the work shown on your plans noted above is in waters of the U.S.  Should you desire to appeal our jurisdiction, please 
submit a request for an approved jurisdictional determination in writing to the undersigned. 

No work may be started unless and until all other required local, State and Federal licenses and permits have been obtained. This includes but is not 
limited to a Flood Hazard Development Permit issued by the town if necessary. 

II. STATE ACTIONS:  PENDING [ X ],  ISSUED [  ],   DENIED [  ]  DATE 

APPLICATION TYPE: PBR:  , TIER 1:   , TIER 2 :  , TIER 3:  , INDIV X LURC: _____  DMR LEASE: _____ NA:  _____ 

III. FEDERAL ACTIONS: 

JOINT PROCESSING MEETING: 15 DEC 2021 LEVEL OF REVIEW: SELF-VERIFICATION:___ PRE-CONSTRUCTION NOTIFICATION: _X_ 

AUTHORITY (Based on a review of plans and/or State/Federal applications): SEC 10 X , 404 10/404 , 103_______ 

EXCLUSIONS:  The exclusionary criteria identified in the general permit do not apply to this project. 

FEDERAL RESOURCE AGENCY OBJECTIONS: EPA_NO__, USF&WS_NO__, NMFS_NO__ 

If you have any questions on this matter, please contact my staff at 978-318-8486 at our Augusta, Maine Project Office. In order for us to better serve 
you, we would appreciate your completing our Customer Service Survey located at: http://corpsmapu.usace.army.mil/cm_apex/f?p=136:4:0 

AMANDA L. T. SAYLES FRANK J. DEL GIUDICE 
PROJECT MANAGER CHIEF, PERMITS & ENFORCEMENT BRANCH 

REGULATORY DIVISION 

https://www.nae.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/State-General-Permits/Maine-General-Permit/
https://www.nae.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/State-General-Permits/Maine-General-Permit/
http://corpsmapu.usace.army.mil/cm_apex/f?p=136:4:0


 

 
 

    
 

  
    

 
 

 
 

  
   

      
        

    
       

     
  

      
     

 
   

   
   

    
   

     
  

 
 

 
        

    
    

   
       

   
     

 
       

  
    

      
     

 
 

      
  

     
      
     

 
  

  
  

    
     

    
   

 
     

     
  

   
 
 
 

 

PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING GENERAL AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR 
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
MAINE GENERAL PERMIT 3 

PERMIT NO. NAE-2021-03061 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

11. Navigation. a. There shall be no unreasonable interference with general navigation by the existence or use of the activity 
authorized herein, and no attempt shall be made by the permittee to prevent the full and free use by the public of all navigable waters at 
or adjacent to the activity authorized herein. b. Work in, over, under, or within a distance of three times the authorized depth of an FNP 
shall specifically comply with GC 10. c. Any safety lights and/or signals prescribed by the U.S. Coast Guard, State of Maine or 
municipality, through regulations or otherwise, shall be installed and maintained at the permittee’s expense on authorized facilities in 
navigable waters of the U.S. d. The permittee understands and agrees that, if future operations by the U.S. require the removal, 
relocation, or other alteration, of the structure or work herein authorized, or if, in the opinion of the Secretary of the Army or his 
authorized representative, said structure or work shall cause unreasonable obstruction to the free navigation of the navigable waters, 
the permittee will be required, upon due notice from the Corps, to remove, relocate, or alter the structural work or obstructions caused 
thereby, without expense to the U.S.  No claim shall be made against the U.S. on account of any such removal or alteration. 

25. Pile Driving and Pile Removal in Navigable Waters. 
a. Derelict, degraded, or abandoned piles and sheet piles in the project area shall be removed in their 
entirety as practicable and properly disposed of in an upland location and not in wetlands. In areas of fine grained 
substrates, piles/sheets shall be removed by direct, vibratory, or clamshell pull method in order to 
minimize potential turbidity and sedimentation impacts. If removal is not practicable, said piles/sheets shall be 
cut off or driven to a depth of at least one foot below substrate. 
b. Work involving pile installation and/or removal should adhere to one of the five methods below: 

i. “In-the-dry”, or 
ii. In-water between Nov. 8th to Apr. 9th, or 
iii. Drilled and pinned to ledge, or 
iv. Vibratory hammers used to install any size and quantity of wood, concrete, or steel, or impact 

hammers limited to one hammer and <50 piles installed/day with the following: wood piles of any 
diameter, concrete piles ≤18-inches diameter, steel piles ≤12-inches diameter if: (1) the hammer is 
≤3,000 pounds and a wood cushion or equivalent is used between the hammer and steel pile, or (2) a 
soft start is used. Soft starts require an initial set of three strikes from the impact hammer at 40% 
energy, followed by a 1-minute waiting period between subsequent three-strike sets. The soft-start 
procedure shall be conducted any time hammering ceases for more than 30 minutes. 

31.  Storage of Seasonal Structures. Seasonal or recreational structures such as pier sections, floats, aquaculture structures, etc. 
that are removed from the waterway for a portion of the year shall be stored in an upland location and not in wetlands, tidal wetlands, 
their substrate, or on mudflats.  These seasonal structures may be stored on the fixed, pile-supported portion of a structure that is 
waterward of the mean high water mark or the ordinary high water mark, e.g. the storage of a ramp or gangway on the pile-supported 
pier. Seasonal storage of structures in navigable waters, e.g., in a protected cove, requires prior Corps approval and local 
harbormaster approval. 

33. Permit(s)/Authorization Letter On-Site. The permittee shall ensure that a copy of the terms and conditions of these GPs and any 
accompanying authorization letter with attached plans are at the site of the work authorized by these GPs whenever work is being 
performed and that all construction personnel performing work which may affect waters of the U.S. are fully aware of the accompanying 
terms and conditions. The entire permit authorization shall be made a part of any and all contracts and subcontracts for work that 
affects areas of Corps jurisdiction at the site of the work authorized by these GPs.  This shall be achieved by including the entire permit 
authorization in the specifications for work.  The term “entire permit authorization” means all terms and conditions of the GPs, the GPs, 
and the authorization letter (including its drawings, plans, appendices and other attachments) and subsequent permit modifications as 
applicable.  If the authorization letter is issued after the construction specifications, but before receipt of bids or quotes, the entire permit 
authorization shall be included as an addendum to the specifications.  If the authorization letter is issued after receipt of bids or quotes, 
the entire permit authorization shall be included in the contract or subcontract.  Although the permittee may assign various aspects of 
the work to different contractors or subcontractors, all contractors and subcontractors shall be obligated by contract to comply with all 
environmental protection provisions contained within the entire GP authorization, and no contract or subcontract shall require or allow 
unauthorized work in areas of Corps jurisdiction. 

34. Inspections. The permittee shall allow the Corps to make periodic inspections at any time deemed necessary in order to ensure 
that the work is eligible for authorization under these GPs, is being, or has been performed in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of these GPs. To facilitate these inspections, the permittee shall complete and return to the Corps the Work-Start Notification Form and 
the Compliance Certification Form when either is provided with an authorization letter.  These forms are attached after the plans. 



03/14/2022

Kittery, ME

KPA-22-2

Kittery Port Authority Application

Project Discription

Type of Project

Property Information

Property History

Status: Active Date Created: Mar 11, 2022

Applicant

Matthew Williams 

mrmattnw@gmail.com

18 Hiltons Run 

Kittery Point, ME 03905 

207 451 2161 

Location

18 Hiltons Run 

KITTERY, ME 03905

Owner:

WILLIAMS, MATTHEW N 

18 Hiltons Run KITTERY POINT, ME 03905

Description of Project

Replace existing float with a new 10' X 20' foat and replace existing wood gangway with a 30' aluminum gangway.

Is any work being performed upland of the Highest Annual Tide?

No

Is this project an in-kind repair/replacement?

No

Name of the property owner(s)

Matthew Williams, April Timko

Property Address

18 Hiltons Run, Kittery Point, Maine 03905

Telephone Number

207 451 2161

Email Address

mrmattnw@gmail.com

Size of the Property

4.5 acres +-

Zoning District

Residential-Rural

Shore Frontage Footage

683 feet +-

This is my first Kittery Port Authority Application for this property



I have submitted an application to the Kittery Port Authority in the past for this property





Acknowledgements

Applicant Information

Attachments

History

Date Activity

Mar 11, 2022 at 4:08 pm Matthew Williams started a draft of Record KPA-22-2

Mar 11, 2022 at 5:51 pm Matthew Williams submitted Record KPA-22-2

Mar 14, 2022 at 8:48 am completed payment step Fee Payment on Record KPA-22-2

Mar 14, 2022 at 8:48 am approval step Application Completeness Review was assigned to Carrie Varao on Record KPA-22-2

Timeline

Label Status Activated Completed Assignee Due Date

Fee Payment Paid Mar 11, 2022 at 5:51 pm Mar 14, 2022 at 8:48 am - -

If you have submitted a previous application to the Kittery Port Authority for this property, please explain:

--

I understand that additional permits and/or approvals may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers, the Maine Department of

Environmental Protection, the Maine Department of Conservation, and/or another legal entity not listed here. Furthermore, I have
submitted the additional permits and/or approvals with this application.



I certify that all information on this application is complete and true to the best of my knowledge. I understand any false, misleading, or

incomplete information will result in the denial of this application.



I certify that I have submitted this application at least 21 days prior to a scheduled Kittery Port Authority Meeting. I understand that

failure to submit this application at least 21 days prior will result in my request going before the Kittery Port Authority at a later date.



I certify that in addition to uploading the required documentation, I will also provide 10 paper copies of each document to the Kittery

Planning and Development Office at least 21 days prior to a scheduled Kittery Port Authority Meeting.



Name of Applicant

Matthew Williams / April Timko

Date Application Completed

3/11/2022

Name of Property Owner

Matthew Williams / April Timko

Agent Name

--

Agent Firm

--

Agent Phone

--

Agent Email

--

pdf Purchase and Sale agreement 356 Haley Rd now 18 Hiltons Run.pdf 

Uploaded by Matthew Williams on Mar 11, 2022 at 4:31 pm

pdf Same as existing with longer gangway and larger float.pdf 

Uploaded by Matthew Williams on Mar 11, 2022 at 4:58 pm

pdf Tax map 33-17 at 18 Hiltons Run.pdf 

Uploaded by Matthew Williams on Mar 11, 2022 at 4:43 pm

docxAbutters within 150.docx 

Uploaded by Matthew Williams on Mar 11, 2022 at 5:40 pm



Label Status Activated Completed Assignee Due Date

Application Completeness Review Active Mar 14, 2022 at 8:48 am - Carrie Varao -

Town Planner Upland Development Review Inactive - - - -

Code Enforcement Upland Development Review Inactive - - - -

Port Authority Approval Uploaded Inactive - - - -

Building Permit Received Inactive - - - -





















  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

Abutters within 150’ of dock 

302 Haley RD 

Sandra and Derron Wood 

10 Prospect Street 

New London, CT 06320 

Other Abutters 

Brian Bourqe 

326 Haley RD 

Kittery Point, ME 03905 

Paul, Jean Treacy 

28 Hiltons Run 

Kittery Point, ME 03905 

Charles, Kathleen Reardon 

21 Hiltons Run 

Kittery Point, ME 03905 

James, Jody Donohue 

23 Hiltons Run 

Kittery Point, ME 03905 

Non abutter within 150 feet 

Bryan Cormier 

12 Goose Point 

Kittery Point, ME 03905 



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Thurston Powell 

322 Haley Rd 

Kittery Pont, ME 03905 




	11 Pepperrell Rd updated plan set.pdf
	20220330111221990.pdf
	11 Pepperrell Rd afer the fact plans update.pdf
	KPA Meeting Material Packet 4.7.2022.pdf
	3-15-2022 SPECIAL MEETING MINS.pdf
	3-3-2022 MINS.pdf
	KPA Meeting Material Packet 4.7.2022.pdf
	2022.4.07 KPA Agenda.pdf
	KITTERY, ME 03904

	11 Pepperrell Rd after the fact.pdf
	11 Pepperrell Rd after the fact plan set.pdf
	KPA APP 11 Pepperrell Rd.pdf
	KPA 11 Pepperrell Rd Plan Set.pdf
	23 Bond Rd KPA app.pdf
	KPA 23 BOND RD SITE PLAN.pdf
	2022-0322 KPA-Submittal2-23Bond.pdf
	TouchdownCapitalLLC_L29439ANBN - Corrected_Order.pdf
	KPA-22-2 18 Hiltons Run Application.pdf
	20220314173618755.pdf
	KPA-22-2 18 Hiltons Run Application.pdf
	KPA-22-2.pdf
	Purchase_and_Sale_agreement_356_Haley_Rd_now_18_Hiltons_Run_Fri_Mar_11_2022_16-31-30.pdf
	Same_as_existing_with_longer_gangway_and_larger_float_Fri_Mar_11_2022_16-58-51.pdf
	Tax_map_33-17_at_18_Hiltons_Run_Fri_Mar_11_2022_16-43-20.pdf
	Abutters_within_150_Fri_Mar_11_2022_17-40-35.pdf


	KPA Approval 6 Badgers Is.pdf





